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STATE OF WASHINGTON

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES

PO Box 45811, Olympia WA 98504-5811

DATE:

February 26, 2015
TO:

RFP# 1556-528 Bidders
FROM:
Kerry Breen, RFP Coordinator
DSHS Central Contracts and Legal Services
SUBJECT:
Amendment No. 2– Bidder’s Q & A 
DSHS amends the RFP# 1556-528 procurement document to include:

· Clarification on Document Formats

It was noted that RFP 1556-528 §§ 2.14.4, 10.7.2, 10.7.3 and 10.11 specify the requirement to submit documents using Microsoft Office 2013 products; and § 10.2 requires the Work Plan to be submitted in Microsoft Project Professional 2013.

Per RFP 1556-528 § 2.14.4, “[f]iles must be formatted in Portable Document Format (Adobe Acrobat PDF) or Microsoft Office 2013 and lower versions….”  (Emphasis added.)  Thus, proposals and other documents submitted in Microsoft Office 2010 would be acceptable.
· Bidder’s Questions and Answers
Bidder’s Questions and Answers
RFP# 1556-528
Question #1:  Can the State provide historical call center performance statistics for the previous 12-18 months (including calls received, calls answered, etc.)?
A:  During calendar year 2014, the client call center received an average of 1,293,757 calls per month.  A monthly average of 14,423 calls were handled by customer service representatives and an average of 714 calls were abandoned or dropped.  The average call time duration for customer service representative assisted calls was 2 minutes and thirteen seconds.
Question #2:   Would the State please provide the following:

1. Provide volume information for the optional debit card program to include:

a. Current caseload by individual program

b. Payment schedule by program (i.e. weekly, bi-weekly, monthly)

c. Average deposit per caseload by program for 2014

d. Number of recipients receiving payments via direct deposit, by program for 2014

e. Number of ATM transactions that have occurred under the current contract for 2014.
A:  1.a.  TANF/SFA = 25,766

        Aged/Blind/Disabled (ABD) = 21,313

        Refugee = 383

        State Supplement Payment = 36,917

1.b.  Cash deposits for ongoing cases are made on the first day of each month.  Deposits for new cases and for supplemental issuances are made daily via the overnight batch process.

1.c.  TANF/SFA = $374.80

         ABD = $172.97

         Refugee = $306.43

         State Supplement Payment = $40.00

1.d.  TANF/SFA = 371

        Aged/Blind/Disabled = 395

        State Supplement Payment = 16,579

1.e.  During calendar year 2014 there were 927,019 ATM transactions.
Question #3:   If bidder’s can complete a transition by April 30, 2016, would the State waive their ability to take the available contract extensions with the current contractor?
A:  If DSHS was ready and the selected bidders was able to satisfactorily complete conversion and transition of EBT services to the bidder’s system on or before April 30, 2016, DSHS would not exercise our contract extension rights with the current contractor.
Question #4:   Will the State allow a separate contract to include the debit card services?
A:  Should DSHS elect to use debit card services, such services would be requested through this agreement as a change order.
Question #5:   Is there a timetable for adding additional programs?
A:   In this paragraph, DSHS simply reserves the right to add additional programs and services during conversion and the agreement term.  DSHS is interested in bidders that have the flexibility to implement such programs and services.  As of this date, there are no new programs or services under consideration.
Question #6:   The RFP restricts page size to 8 ½ X 11 inch paper. For complex documents like Microsoft Project plans and complex diagrams, may Bidders use larger paper folded down to 8 ½ X 11 inch size?
A:  DSHS requires that proposals be submitted on standard 8 ½ by 11 inch paper. However for Microsoft Project plans and Visio diagrams larger paper is acceptable. No additional exceptions will be allowed.
Question #7:   The RFP requires Bidders to respond using 12-point font. May Bidders use a smaller, still readable font for the following: headers and footers, requirement text, exhibits, and tables?
A:   Bidders may use a smaller, still readable font for the following: headers and footers, requirement text, exhibits, and tables.
Question #8:   Several requested documents/samples do not comply with font restrictions and they are not available in a native MS Office format for font adjustments. Would the State confirm that it is permissible to submit those documents as is?
A:  Existing documents the bidder wishes to include as an attachment to the proposal that do not comply with the font restrictions and are not available in a native MS Office format may be submitted in their original format as a PDF document.
Question #9:   The RFP states “Proposal pages must be numbered with page numbers appearing on the bottom, center of each page.”  Bidders may be submitting pre-existing documents (e.g., financial reports) that have existing page numbering and some pages may not be numbered. Because these are long and complex documents, may bidders leave them unaltered?
A:   The proposal page numbering must adhere to the instructions in section 2.14.2.  Any pre-existing documents submitted as attachments to the proposal may retain their original page numbering.
Question #10:   The RFP states that the State wishes to receive MS Office files only with the “Original” submission but then states that PDF files OR MS Office files are acceptable. It is also unclear if the State only wishes to receive one CD with the “Original” binder and none with the copies.

Would the State clarify? 
A:  A soft copy of the bidder’s proposal must be submitted in Microsoft Word and/or Excel, as appropriate.  The bidder may use PDF files for any attachments to their proposal.

Only one soft copy is required.  A soft copy is not required for each of the copies. 

Soft copies may be submitted in portable media or electronic media. Examples CD, DVD, or thumb drives
Question #11:   In the second paragraph of 2.14.3, the State states “The Bidder must include in the “Original” binder one soft copy in Microsoft Word and/or Microsoft Excel, as appropriate”.  In the first paragraph of 2.14.4, the State states “Files must be formatted in Portable Document Format (Adobe Acrobat PDF) or Microsoft Office 2013 and lower versions of Microsoft Word, Excel, or PowerPoint.”  Can the electronic files on the submitted CD be in PDF format, which will save space?
A:   A soft copy of the bidder’s proposal must be submitted in Microsoft Word and/or Excel, as appropriate.  The bidder may use PDF files for any attachments to their proposal.  Soft copies may be submitted in portable media or electronic media. Examples CD, DVD, or thumb drives.
Question #12:   The RFP states that one of the evaluation criteria will be “The strength and form of contractual commitments made by the Bidder to DSHS.”  Given that vendors are specifically authorized to propose changes to the terms and conditions, would the State please clarify how this evaluation criteria will be scored?
A:  The evaluation of “the strength and form of contractual commitments made by the Bidder to DSHS” will be based on the bidder’s responses to the RFP. Please refer to the Assessment and Yes/No Scoring Descriptions tables on pages 23 and 24.
Question #13:   For clarification purposes, may we assume there are three bidders.
Transition and Conversion:  The maximum points for the top bidder are 3?

CPCM Pricing for Core Services:  Would the State explain how the calculation is to be done?  For example, the available Raw points is nine, but how does the weight factor affect the calculation?  Is it 5 x 9 = 45?
Optional Branded Debit Card:  Raw point s available are 60 but do you multiply that number by the weight factor of 0.5?  For example 0.5 x 60 = 30?
A:   The following responses are based on three bidders:

The maximum points for the top bidder for Schedule 1, Transition and Conversion, is 3.

To determine most advantageous Schedule 2, DSHS will average the CPCM tiered pricing offered for the following tiers: Less than 300,001 cases, More than 1,500,000 cases, and the CPCM tiered pricing being offered for tier corresponding to the actual caseload count experienced by DSHS for February 2015.  This calculation will be completed for each of the three caseload types, SNAP Only, Cash Only, and Combined.  The ranking of 3, 2, and 1 will be assigned for each of the three caseload types, with each bidder’s rankings added to arrive at a total ranking.  If bidder 1 was ranked as “3” in each of the three caseload types, that bidder’s total ranking would be 9 and the weighted score would be 45.  If bidder 2 was ranked as “2” in each of the three caseload types, that bidder’s total ranking would be 6 and the weighted score would be 30.
Regarding the weight factor for Schedule 8, the example of 0.5 X 60 = 30 is correct.

Question #14:   Would the State please complete the Total Points column to give bidders a better understanding of how the evaluation scores are determined?

	Description
	Weight Factor
	Raw Points Based 

upon 3 Proposals
	Total Points

	Transition/Conversion
	1
	3
	3

	CPCM Core Services
	5
	9
	45

	Per Unit Hardware
	1
	63
	63

	EBT Fee for Service
	1
	21
	21

	EBT Optional Services
	1
	39
	39

	Vault Card and PIN
	0.1
	3
	0.3

	Optional Remedies
	0.4
	3
	1.2

	Branded Debit Card
	0.5
	60
	30


A:  DSHS’ response is shown in bold in the “Total Points” column of the table provided as part of the question.
Question #15:   Would the State clarify the Raw points determination?  For example, why are the Per Unit Hardware Prices seemingly worth so much more than CPCM Pricing for Core?  Similarly, why are Optional Services seemingly worth more than CPCM?
A:   With the exception of Schedule 2, each line item of each schedule will be evaluated as to its pricing advantage to DSHS.  In Schedule 3, Per Unit Hardware Prices, there are 21 line items.  In Schedule 2, there are only three line items that will receive a score.  In Schedule 5, Optional Services, there are 13 line items as compared to the three line items in Schedule 2.
Question #16:   Given the length of audited financial statements, can Bidders provide these documents in electronic format only?
A:  Bidders may submit audited financial statements in an electronic format only.
Question #17:   Subcontractor agreements are typically not executed prior to execution of the prime contact between the State and its chosen contractor.  Contract terms are finalized during this process which often affects subcontracts.  Can bidders provide these contracts within 15 days of prime contract execution? Or, would a confidential Teaming Agreement be acceptable?
A:   The State understands that subcontracts are executed after execution of the prime contract between the State and its chosen contractor.  Bidders shall provide copies of all subcontracts which would begin after execution of the prime contract and which would apply during the term, subject to providing them at least 30 calendar Days prior to the effective date of such subcontracts and subject to the other terms as described in the RFP and model contract.
Question #18:   Does the State want the Project Work Plan to be included with the response in just PDF format, or in PDF and Microsoft Project format?
A:  The soft copy may be in either format.
Question #19:   Can the State confirm that Client notices are provided by the State, not the Contractor?
A:   Client notices are provided by DSHS.
Question #20:   In lieu of the specified letter of credit requirement, will the State allow vendor to provide an annually renewable performance bond in the same amount?
A:  A renewable performance bond is not acceptable to the State in lieu of a letter of credit.
Question #21:   The Agreement requires Contractor to perform settlement prior to funding being made available.  This places an undue burden and financial risk on Contractor if funding is delayed or no longer available (for e.g. in a non-allocation of funding scenario under Sec. 20.9).  Will the State agree to modify this provision such that settlement is performed immediately after funding is received? Or, preferably, will the State allow vendor to pull the necessary funding prior to release of the ACH file and settlement as is common in other EBT programs?  If the latter options are not feasible, will the State agree to own the bank accounts from which the ACH file will be drawn?
A:   Multiple Washington laws, including but not limited to RCW 39.58.020 and RCW 43.88.160, prevent the State from allowing the proposed alternatives.
Question #22:   The RFP is not clear as to whether or not the State currently has a branded prepaid debit card.  Is this a carry-over from the current vendor’s “one card solution” that was not implemented?
If the State does have a branded prepaid debit card in use today, can the State provide further information, including the following statistics:

•
Percentage of payments made to a debit card

•
Number of payments made to direct deposit, debit card, and check

•
Average payment amount per check/direct deposit/debit card

•
POS Signature Activity

•
POS PIN Activity

•
ATM Activity

•
Teller Activity

•
Number of calls to the Automated Customer Service number
•
Number of calls taken by Live Customer Service
A:  DSHS does not currently use branded debit cards.
Question #23:   Does the Head of Household represent the actual case number?  If so, how does this works today and when does this take place?
A:   A Client ID is assigned to each person of a household receiving assistance and each household is assigned an Assistance Unit ID for each type of assistance applied for.  When program eligibility is determined, the household selects one member to be the head of household.  The head of household’s Client ID is used as the actual case number for EBT purposes.
Question #24:   Can the State describe what host-to-host services they are referring to in Section 13.4 and other areas of the RFP?  Can the State also describe the technologies involved today?
A:  A host-to-host process uses a message-based interface to receive and process individual data records received from a system in real time. Following edits against the input message, the receiving system either retrieves and returns appropriate information or performs the appropriate update. Response messages are transmitted to indicate whether the message was successfully processed. DSHS does not currently employ host-to-host services.
Question #25:   Does the State use ultraviolet ink on the card obverse today?  If so, can the State describe how ultraviolet ink is used?  Can the State further define “fine line printing” and describe how this is used for the card obverse?
A:   Ultraviolet ink is currently used on the DSHS EBT cards.  The feature is provided to allow retailers the ability to identify possible counterfeit EBT cards.

Fine line printing is a security method that entails line structures that appear normal to the human eye but is difficult for current copying and scanning equipment to resolve properly.  Fine line printing is used in the card’s obverse graphics.
Question #26:   Is a photographic ID on EBT cards currently utilized by the State or is this purely an optional future item?
A:  Photographic ID on EBT cards is not currently utilized by DSHS and is purely an optional future item.
Question #27:   There are many variations as to how to implement photo cards, such as where are the photos taken, where are they stored, are new card printers required, and other.  Would the State provide guidance on how bidders respond to this requirement?  Does this option need to be priced?  Where?
A:   At this time, DSHS does not require photographs on the EBT card, however photographs may, in the future, be mandated by the Legislature or DSHS policy.  DSHS is interested in the bidders’ solutions to obtain, store, and imprint photographs on initial and replacement cards issued either by the EBT contractor or over-the-counter in the local offices.  DSHS is not asking bidders to provide pricing for this service.
Question #28:   Most State EBT programs have removed card sleeves as a requirement because they tend to offer little value to cardholders and have a low retention rate.  Would the State consider removing this requirement as a cost savings measure that the vendors could pass on to the State in the overall pricing?
A:  No.  DSHS uses the card sleeves to display the mandatory federal anti-discrimination language.
Question #29:   There are many costs to implementing an alternate card technology, beyond the plastic card itself.  Bidders request the opportunity discuss an alternate technology and the right to provide a written quote for these services.  Would the State agree?
A:   DSHS currently utilizes magnetic stripe cards and intends to continue using such cards through transition.  After transaction, if DSHS is interested in alternate card technologies, DSHS would initiate the conversation through the Change Order process.
Question #30:   Does the State currently support all three methods for Congregate Living Transfer types?  Can the State provide the number of transactions/transfers done today by type?
A:  DSHS currently supports the transfer of funds from a client card to the group home using a POS terminal deployed in the facility.  In Washington, eligible treatment facilities and group homes are certified by the USDA/FNS as retailers to participate in the SNAP program.
Question #31:   Is the State open to alternative methods, as well as those described in the RFP?
A:   DSHS is interested in learning about alternate methods.
Question #32:   Does the State use any of these technologies today, and if so, can the State elaborate further?
A:  No, DSHS does not use these technologies today.
Question #33:   Can the State clarify what is meant by “four (4) times the number of active cases” and “the four (4) call limit” in the third sentence? Are these the same or is there a difference?
A:   Four (4) times the number of active cases means a number equal to the total number of cases for which a benefit authorization has been posted to the account during the month multiplied by 4.  The “four (4) call limit” reference in the third sentence is to have the same meaning as “four (4) times the number of active cases”.  For example if there is a total of 500,000 active Food Only, Cash Only, and Combined active cases in the month, the “four (4) times the number of active cases” would be 2,000,000.
Question #34:   Is the Restaurant Meals program currently in operation in the State?  If so, can the State provide details of how this program operates?
A:  DSHS does not currently operate a Restaurant Meals program.
Question #35:   How many wireless POS devices are deployed today?  Who owns the terminals?
A:   DSHS currently leases one wireless POS device from the EBT contractor.
Question #36:   How many exempt retailers are provided a dedicated telephone line today?
A:  There are currently no exempt retailers that are provided dedicated telephone lines.
Question #37:   Would the State provide bidders with a copy of the current cash access plan.  The RFP says “DSHS will review the Contractor’s plan to provide adequate cash access and if necessary, shall require additional access sites if the proposed access is determined to be inadequate.”  Would the State define “adequate cash access?”
A:   The contractor’s cash access plan is an analysis, by Zip Code, of the available cash dollars from ATMs to meet the need of the assistance cash dollars issued.  The analysis is generally presented in an MS Excel format and displays the city, Zip Code, cash caseload, dollars issued, total dollars available, and the amount over/under.  The analysis identifies areas where the available cash from ATMs is insufficient to meet the need.  For example, a recent cash assess plan identified Zip Code 98253 as having a monthly issuance of over $1000.00 but no available cash dollars from ATMs to meet that need.
Question #38:   Now that the State is fully rolled out and has a functioning EBT system that is an industry standard, does the State still need this functionality, and if, so can the State elaborate on the number of test cards and accounts the State will need?
A:  DSHS believes this functionality is still needed.  There are currently twenty (20) retailer test cards issued to other State agencies (such as the Washington State Department of Transportation) and various retailers and retail organizations.  DSHS would not expect the number of test card to exceed 100 at any given time.
Question #39:   Is the intention of this requirement [Sec. 13.12.12] that the EBT Contractor charge “exempt” retailers and organizations the same fees paid by DSHS for POS equipment, rather than specifying “non-exempt” retailers?
A:  No.  Exempt retailers and organizations, such as farmers markets and group home/treatment facilities, receive EBT-only POS terminals at no cost.  DSHS pays the EBT contractor for the lease costs of the equipment provided.  The intend here is that not-for-profit, non-exempt retailers be offered the same EBT-only POS terminal pricing as DSHS pays for exempt retailer EBT-only POS terminals.
Question #40:   Client Returns are not typically made via an ACH transaction.  May bidders propose usual procedures for returns?
A:  Bidders may propose other procedures for returns.
Question #41:   Funds distributed to a debit card are provided the same privacy and financial protections as funds distributed to a bank account through direct deposit.  In both cases, funds are considered distributed and “owned” by the cardholder and therefore not subject to viewing unless in accordance with a subpoena or other legal action according to appropriate jurisdiction.

Providing the State with specific transaction data could potentially violate Privacy laws and regulations such as Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and Regulation P (which under Federal law requires cardholder privacy and confidentiality of personal information and prohibits information being shared about a consumer).  In order for contractor to comply with the aforementioned regulations, would the State agree to either remove this requirement, amend to be summary information only or discuss an alternative solution that addresses the underlying requirement while ensuring that PII information remains fully protected?
A:  DSHS does not have plans to use branded debit cards. If plans change DSHS would initiate the conversation through the Change Order process.
Question #42:   The RFP requires bidders to specify if RFID technology is available.  Given the current industry movement to EMV cards, would the State amend this requirement to include both RFID or EMV?
A:   DSHS would amend this requirement to include both RFID and EMV.
Question #43:   Does the current EBT Contractor provide merchant bank and bank account numbers on an ACH Activity – Merchant Report?

A:  No.
Question #44:   Can the State clarify what it means by Contractor system allowing DSHS to certify Clients during a disaster?
A:   During disaster events, the normal processes for transmitting client, benefit, and card information between DSHS and the EBT contractor may be interrupted for lengthy periods.  Bidders need to propose and describe alternate methods of demographic, benefit, and card data transmission.  Because eligibility criteria and verification rules may be relaxed, bidders should also address their ability to create and support new accounts with less demographic information than is usually provided by DSHS.
Question #45:   To date, biometrics are not used in EBT.  What is the State’s intent/plan for use of biometric EBT-only POS Terminals?
A:  There is currently no intent or plan by DSHS to use biometric EBT-only POS terminals.
Question #46:   Will all CPCM tiers be weighted equally?  If not, can the State explain the scoring methodology for the various CPCM tiers?
A:  Yes, all CPCM tiers will be weighted equally.  To determine most advantageous Schedule 2 pricing, DSHS will average the CPCM tiered pricing offered for the following tiers: Less than 300,001 cases, More than 1,500,000 cases, and the CPCM tiered pricing being offered for tier corresponding to the actual caseload count experienced by DSHS for February 2015.  This calculation will be completed for each of the three caseload types, SNAP Only, Cash Only, and Combined.  The ranking of 3, 2, and 1 will be assigned for each of the three caseload types, with each bidder’s rankings added to arrive at a total ranking.  If bidder 1 was ranked as “3” in each of the three caseload types, that bidder’s total ranking would be 9 and the weighted score would be 45.  If bidder 2 was ranked as “2” in each of the three caseload types, that bidder’s total ranking would be 6 and the weighted score would be 30.
Question #47:   Does the State use card embossers today.  Is the State considering a change in how cards are distributed?  Would you please elaborate?
A:   DSHS does not currently use card embossers and is not considering using them at this time.
Question #48:   Are biometric EBT-only POS terminal and High Speed Embossers price points optional?  For instance, if the EBT Contractor uses different technologies where such devices are not required, can these price per unit lines be left blank without penalty?
A:  Pricing of biometric EBT-only POS terminals and High Speed Embossers should not be considered optional.
Question #49:   Can the bidder break down the optional debit card services in the fee schedule for the ATM Withdrawal Transaction section to include both in- network and out-of-network fees that might apply?
A:   Bidders may use the “Other:” fields provided in Schedule 8 to display pricing for services not specifically listed in the Schedule.
Question #50:   Will the State allow an addition to the file layouts to include those layouts that would apply to the optional services debit card programs?
A:  Should DSHS elect to use branded debit cards for the delivery of cash assistance, the request would be made using the Change Order process.
Question #51:   Are biometric technologies being used in the current EBT program?  If so, can the State provide details on how and for what programs?
A:  Biometric technologies are not currently being used in the EBT program.
Question #52:   Can the State provide details for the process around customer service complaints, including the following:
•
From whom and how will the EBT Contractor receive customer service complaints?

•
Does the four-hour time period for responding to complaints regarding card and account issues start from the time the State files such complaints with the EBT Contractor?  
A:   Customer service complaints would be received by DSHS from DSHS clients via telephone, email, DSHS web site, or in person in one of our local offices.

The four-hour period would start from the time DSHS notifies the EBT contactor of the complaint.  The same standard applies to the start of the 3 business day time period.
